
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Wednesday, 8th January, 2020
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1  Apologies 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  Minutes 3 - 4

Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on
the 25th September 2019.

3  Declarations of Interest 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

4  Urgent Items of Business 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5  Items for Exclusion of Public and Press 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

6  Social Value presentation from Lorraine Cox from STAR 

STAR will provide the Committee with a presentation on Social Value.

7  2019-20 External Audit Progress Report 5 - 14

External Audit will provide Members with their Audit progress report 
2019-2020.

Public Document Pack



8  2018-19 Annual Audit Letter 15 - 27

For the Committee to receive External Audit’s Annual Audit Letter 
2018-2019.

9  Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2019/20 28 - 46

The Committee will receive a quarter 2 report for 2019-2020 from 
Internal Audit.

10  Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2019/20 47 - 60

The Council’s Risk Manager will provide Members with a Risk 
Management Progress Report 2019-2020.

Audit and Governance Committee Members

For more information about this meeting, please contact 

01706 924829
john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday, 25 September 2019

PRESENT: Councillors Malcom (Chair), James Gartside, Hussain, Martin, 
Nickson and Williams.

OFFICERS: Ian Corbridge – Head of Internal Audit, Julie Murphy – Chief 
Finance Officer, John Addison – Governance and Committee Services

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: K. Murray and D. Watson (Mazars).

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Sultan

20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interests.

21 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items.

22 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

There were no items of business for the exclusion of the press and public.

23 MINUTES

RESOLVED

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee, held 
25th July 2018, be approved as a correct record.

24 EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER

The Chair informed the Committee that due to a clerical error the wrong report 
had been included with the Agenda and the item would be deferred until the 
next meeting of the Committee.

REOLVED

That the item be deferred to the next meeting of the Audit Committee.

25 INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 1 REPORT 2019/20

The Head of Audit and Assurance provided the Committee with a report that 
summarised the work of the Internal Audit team during the first quarter of 
2019/20. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or adequate 
assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the audits 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



completed during the period. Furthermore it was reported that, Internal Audit 
had completed 23% of the agreed Audit Plan which achieved the agreed 
target. 

Members were informed that the Counter Fraud Team had achieved £45,807 
in identifying savings and overpayments during the period together with four 
sanctions comprising of one prosecution, one caution and two fines for fraud.

REOLVED

The report is noted.

26 RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q1 2019/20

The Head of Audit and Assurance provided Members with a report that 
provided a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work during Quarter 
1 of the 2019/20 year.

It was reported that the new Pentana Risk software system was launched on 
1st July 2019. The new system would realise time savings, increased flexibility 
in report writing, and better ‘cloud-based’ coordination of shared Council/CCG 
risks.

Members noted that information regarding the most significant risks recorded 
under RBC Service and Integrated Health & Social Care risk registers were 
provided within the report.

The Chair was pleased to report that the Councils Insurance Team had 
achieved a claims cost mitigation figure of £476,684.15 for the quarter.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted as well as noting the level of assurance provided 
through the management of risk and insurance services.

Page 4



Audit Progress Report
Rochdale Borough Council
December 2019 
Year Ending 31 March 2020

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



CONTENTS

1. Audit progress

2. National publications

This document is to be regarded as confidential to Rochdale Borough Council. It has been prepared for the sole use of the Audit and

Governance Committee. No responsibility is accepted to any other person in respect of the whole or part of its contents. Our written consent

must first be obtained before this document, or any part of it, is disclosed to a third party.

2
Page 6



1. AUDIT PROGRESS

Purpose of this report

This report provides the Audit and Governance Committee with an update on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your

external auditors. The paper also seeks to highlight at Section 2 key emerging national issues and developments which may be of

interest to Members of the Committee.

If you require any additional information regarding the issues included within this briefing, please contact any member of your

engagement team.

Audit progress 2019/20

The 2019/20 audit is now in progress. Our on-site planning visit is taking place week commencing 3 December 2019. As part of this

we are:

 updating our core financial systems documentation;

 holding internal planning meetings;

 holding update meetings with the finance team to agree the arrangements for the interim and final audit visits;

 discussing emerging technical issues with your team; and 

 reviewing minutes from Council meetings to inform our financial audit and value for money conclusion risk assessment. 

Our detailed Audit Strategy Memorandum will be presented to the next meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee in early 2020. 
This will include the outcome of our planning and risk assessment process and identify areas of specific audit focus. 

There are no matters to bring to your attention at this stage. 

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

3
Page 7



2.    NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Publication/update Key points Page

National Audit Office (NAO)

1
New Code of Audit Practice 2020/21 –

Consultation

Consultation process has closed for the new Code of Audit Practice 

that will apply for 2020/21 audits
5

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

2
Local Government audit opinions 

issued by 31 July 2019

Press release relating to the increase in delays in issuing audit 

opinions
6

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)

3
A practical guide for Local Authorities 

on Income Generation (2019 edition)
Guidance to assist Councils 7

Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG)

4
Review of local authority financial 

reporting and external audit

Announcement of a wide ranging review of financial reporting and 

external audit in the sector
8

Local Government Association (LGA)

5

A Councillor’s guide to procurement, 

2019 edition, Local Government 

Association (LGA)

Includes a toolkit. 9

6 Reaching out, LGA
Loneliness policy context and consideration of effective local delivery 

models. 
9

7
A councillor’s guide to digital

connectivity, LGA
Key information for councillors. 9

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

4
Page 8



2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

1. New Code of Audit Practice 2020/21 – Consultation, September 2019

Schedule 6 of the Act requires that the Code be reviewed, and revisions considered at least every five years. The current Code came into 
force on 1 April 2015, and the maximum five-year lifespan of the Code means it now needs to be reviewed and a new Code laid in 
Parliament in time for it to come in to force no later than 1 April 2020.

The consultation is taking place in two stages. The first has concluded and the second is currently underway with a deadline for responses 
of 22 November 2019. The NAO plans to finalise the Code by the end of 2019, ready to be laid in Parliament early in 2020. The new Code 
will apply from audits of local bodies’ 2020/21 financial statements onwards. 

The first stage of the consultation showed broad support for maintaining the principles-based nature of the Code, being the wider scope of 
public audit, independence and public reporting.  However the responses highlighted that this should be supported by more detailed 
sector-specific guidance. 

The second stage of the consultation is focusing on the text of the draft Code. In particular there are proposed changes to the way 
auditors report on arrangements to deliver value for money in the use of resources.

The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 places a specific duty on the local auditor to be satisfied whether the body they are auditing has 
proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. In the current Code, this is referred 
to as work on arrangements to secure value for money. 

Currently, the local auditor reports against a single overall criterion as to whether: “In all significant respects, the audited body had proper 
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people.” This is known as the value for money conclusion and is included in the Auditor Report included in Council’s 
financial statements. 

The consultation draft Code proposes changes to this reporting, with a more detailed commentary on the value for money arrangements 
being included in a new ‘Auditor’s Annual Report’.

Should the Council wish to respond to the consultation, the details are provided in the link below.

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/#

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

5
Page 9

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – PUBLIC SECTOR AUDIT 
APPOINTMENTS LTD

2.  Local Government audit opinions issued by 31 July 2019, August 2019

PSAA issued a press release after the end of the 2018/19 audit deadline to highlight the increase in the number of audit opinions that were 

not available by 31 July 2019. Reporting an increase in the number of opinions not available, the press release highlights the factors that 

have driven the increase in delays.

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2019/08/news-release-local-government-audit-opinions-delivered-by-31-july-2019/

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

6
Page 10

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2019/08/news-release-local-government-audit-opinions-delivered-by-31-july-2019/


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – CIPFA

3.  A practical guide for Local Authorities on Income Generation (2019 edition), CIPFA, July 2019

CIPFA's revised income generation guide reflects on the income generation issues of 2019 and the changes that are being made.

The issues that are examined in this publication include:

• the need for thorough testing and business cases to robustly assess income proposals; 

• the impact of the 2018 MHCLG Statutory Investment Guidance; and

• how the pattern of local authority income is changing. 

The guide will allow councils to maximise their income potential against a backdrop of Brexit uncertainties and other economic changes. 
With more authorities relying on income generation to balance their budgets, the guide can help finance staff stand at arms-length to 
ensure councils act prudently. 

The publication also has practical guidance on income generation for different service areas and there is a full coverage of discretionary 
charging rules.

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/a-practical-guide-for-local-authorities-on-income-generation-2019-edition

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

7
Page 11

https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/a-practical-guide-for-local-authorities-on-income-generation-2019-edition


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – MHCLG

4.  Review of local authority financial reporting and external audit, September 2019

The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government announced in September that they had appointed Sir Tony Redmond to 
conduct a review of the arrangements in place to support the transparency and quality of local authority financial reporting and external 
audit including those introduced by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The review will not look at broader issues of local 
authority finances and sustainability.

The review will examine the existing purpose, scope and quality of statutory audits of local authorities in England and the supporting 
regulatory framework to in order to determine:

 Whether the audit and related regulatory framework for local authorities in England is operating in line with the policy intent set out in 
the Act and the related impact assessment;

 Whether the reforms have improved the effectiveness of the control and governance framework along with the transparency of financial 
information presented by councils;

 Whether the current statutory framework for local authority financial reporting supports the transparent disclosure of financial
performance and enables users of the accounts to hold local authorities to account; and

 To make recommendations on how far the process, products and framework may need to improve and evolve to meet the needs of 
local residents and local taxpayers, and the wider public interest.

As part of the review, MHCLG have issued a “Call for Views” which is linked below, along with the review’s terms of reference.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-terms-of-reference

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

8
Page 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-terms-of-reference
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/review-of-local-authority-financial-reporting-and-external-audit-call-for-views


2.  NATIONAL PUBLICATIONS – LGA

5. A Councillor’s guide to procurement, 2019 edition, Local Government Association

The LGA worked closely with councils to develop the National Procurement Strategy 2018 and a toolkit that enables councils to set their 
own objectives and measure their own progress. The National Procurement Strategy puts the councillor role front and centre and this 
guide has been produced specifically with councillors in mind. It looks at the roles councillor’s play – both executive members and those 
engaged in overview and scrutiny work – and provides hints and tips on how to get the best out of procurement and contract management. 
Just as in the national strategy, the focus is on delivering the council’s objectives. Councillors do not need to be procurement
professionals. But they do need to be able to ask the right questions and that is where this guide comes in. 

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-procurement-2019-edition

6. Reaching out, Local Government Association

This guide outlines the current loneliness policy context, uses a range of case studies to demonstrate effective local delivery models 
working in practice, and provides useful check lists and top tips on how to measure and evaluate outputs.

https://www.local.gov.uk/reaching-out

7. A councillor’s guide to digital connectivity, Local Government Association. 

This guide is structured to provide councillors with key information on digital connectivity. It explores the main issues and challenges 
facing local area. 

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-digital-connectivity-0

1. Audit progress 2. National publications

9
Page 13

https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-procurement-2019-edition
https://www.local.gov.uk/reaching-out
https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-digital-connectivity-0


Partner: Karen Murray

Phone: 0161 238 9248 

Mobile: 07721 234043

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Senior Manager: Daniel Watson

Phone: 0161 238 9349 
Mobile: 07909 985324
Email:  daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT

Page 14



Annual Audit Letter - Draft
Rochdale Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2019

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



CONTENTS

1. Executive summary

2. Audit of the financial statements

3. Value for Money conclusion

4. Other reporting responsibilities

5. Our fees

6. Forward look

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd. Reports 

and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to members or officers are prepared for the sole use of the Council and we take no responsibility to any 

member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 

England and Wales.

1
Page 16



Purpose of the Annual Audit Letter

Our Annual Audit Letter summarises the work we have undertaken as the auditor for Rochdale Borough Council for the year ended 31 

March 2019.  Although this letter is addressed to the Council, it is designed to be read by a wider audience including members of the 

public and other external stakeholders.  

Our responsibilities are defined by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 2014 Act) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by 

the National Audit Office (the NAO).  The detailed sections of this letter provide details on those responsibilities, the work we have done 

to discharge them, and the key findings arising from our work.  These are summarised below.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Area of responsibility Summary

Audit of the financial statements

Our auditor’s report issued on 30 July 2019 included our opinion that the financial 

statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and 

of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19. 

Other information published 

alongside the audited financial 

statements

Our auditor’s report issued on 30 July 2019 included our opinion that: 

• The other information in the Statement of Accounts is consistent with the audited 

financial statements.

Value for Money conclusion

Our auditor’s report concluded that we are satisfied that in all significant respects, the 

Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019. 

Reporting to the group auditor
Our work on the Council’s WGA return is in progress and we will report to the NAO by 

the deadline of 12 September 2019..

Statutory reporting 

Our auditor’s report confirmed that we did not use our powers under s24 of the 2014 

Act to issue a report in the public interest or to make written recommendations to the 

Council.

Page 17



The scope of our audit and the results of our work

The purpose of our audit is to provide reasonable assurance to users that the financial statements are free from material error. We do 

this by expressing an opinion on whether the statements are prepared, in all material respects, in line with the financial reporting 

framework applicable to the Council and whether they give a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 

and of its financial performance for the year then ended. 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice issued by the NAO, and International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  These require us to consider whether:

 the accounting policies are appropriate to the Council's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed;

 the significant accounting estimates made by management in the preparation of the financial statements are reasonable; and

 the overall presentation of the financial statements provides a true and fair view.

Our auditor’s report, issued to the Council on 30 July 2019,  stated that, in our view, the financial statements give a true and fair view of 

the Council’s financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of its financial performance for the year then ended. 

Our approach to materiality

We apply the concept of materiality when planning and performing our audit, and when evaluating the effect of misstatements identified 

as part of our work.   We consider the concept of materiality at numerous stages throughout the audit process, in particular when 

determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures, and when evaluating the effect of uncorrected misstatements. An 

item is considered material if its misstatement or omission could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users of 

the financial statements. 

Judgements about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by both qualitative and quantitative 

factors.  As a result we have set materiality for the financial statements as a whole (financial statement materiality) and a lower level of 

materiality for specific items of account (specific materiality) due to the nature of these items or because they attract public interest.  We 

also set a threshold for reporting identified misstatements to the Audit and Governance Committee. We call this our trivial threshold.

The table below provides details of the materiality levels applied in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2019:

2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

Opinion on the financial statements Unqualified

Financial statement materiality 
Our financial statement materiality is based on 2% of 

Gross Operating Expenditure
£12.194m

Trivial threshold
Our trivial threshold is based on 3% of financial 

statement materiality.
£0.366m

Specific materiality

We have applied a lower level of materiality to the 

following areas of the accounts:

- Officer Remuneration bandings

- Related Party Transactions

£0.005m

£0.050m

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 18



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our response to significant risks and management judgements

As part of our continuous planning procedures we considered whether there were risks of material misstatement in the Council's

financial statements that required special audit consideration. We reported significant risks identified at the planning stage to the Audit 

and Governance Committee within the Audit Strategy Memorandum and provided details of how we responded to those risks in our 

Audit Completion Report.  The table below outlines the identified significant risks, the work we carried out on those risks and our 

conclusions.

4

Identified significant risk Our response
Our findings and 

conclusions

Management override of controls

In all entities, management at various levels 

within an organisation are in a unique position to 

perpetrate fraud because of their ability to 

manipulate accounting records and prepare 

fraudulent financial statements by overriding 

controls that otherwise appear to be operating 

effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which 

such override could occur, we consider there to 

be a risk of material misstatement due to fraud 

and thus a significant risk on all audits.

We addressed this risk through performing audit work

over:

• Accounting estimates impacting on amounts included

in the financial statements;

• Consideration of identified significant transactions

outside the normal course of business; and

• Journals recorded in the general ledger and other

adjustments made in preparation of the financial

statements.

There were no significant 

matters arising from our 

work on the management 

override of controls.

Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment

The CIPFA Code requires that where assets are 

subject to revaluation, their year end carrying 

value should reflect the fair value at that date. 

The Council has adopted a rolling revaluation 

model which sees all land and buildings revalued 

in a four year cycle.

The valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment 

involves the use of a management expert (the 

valuer), and incorporates assumptions and 

estimates which impact materially on the 

reported value. There are risks relating to the 

valuation process.

As a result of the rolling programme of 

revaluations, there is a risk that individual assets 

which have not been revalued for up to three 

years are not valued at their materially correct 

fair value. In addition, as the valuations are 

undertaken through the year there is a risk that 

the fair value as the assets is materially different 

at the year end. Each year the Council 

undertakes a desk-top exercise, with regards to 

local property indices, to confirm the value of 

assets not valued in year are materially correct.

We have: 

• Critically assessed the Council’s valuer’s scope of 

work, qualifications, objectivity and independence to 

carry out the Council’s programme of revaluations;

• Considered whether the overall revaluation 

methodology used by the Council valuer is in line with 

industry practice, social housing statutory guidance, 

the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Council’s 

accounting policies;

• Critically assessed the appropriateness of the 

underlying data and the key assumptions used in the 

valuer’s calculations;

• Assessed the movement in market indices between 

the revaluation dates and the year end to determine 

whether there have been material movements over 

that time;

• Critically assessed the treatment of the upward and 

downward revaluations in the Council’s financial 

statements with regards to the requirements of the 

CIPFA Code of Practice;

• Critically assessed the approach that the Council 

adopts to ensure that assets not subject to revaluation 

in 2018/19 are materially fairly stated; and

• Tested a sample of items of capital expenditure in 

2018/19 to confirm that the additions are appropriately 

valued in the financial statements. 

There were no significant 

matters arising from our 

work on the management 

override of controls.

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 19



2. AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our response to significant risks and management judgements continued

5

Identified significant risk Our response
Our findings and 

conclusions

Valuation of Defined Benefit Pension Liability

The net pension liability represents a material 

element of the Council’s balance sheet. The 

Council is an admitted body of Greater 

Manchester Pension Fund, which had its last 

triennial valuation completed as at 31 March 

2016.

The valuation of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme relies on a number of assumptions, 

most notably around the actuarial assumptions, 

and actuarial methodology which results in the 

Council’s overall valuation.

There are financial assumptions and 

demographic assumptions used in the 

calculation of the Council’s valuation, such as the 

discount rate, inflation rates and mortality rates. 

The assumptions should also reflect the profile of 

the Council’s employees, and should be based 

on appropriate data. The basis of the 

assumptions is derived on a consistent basis 

year to year, or updated to reflect any changes.

There is a risk that the assumptions and 

methodology used in valuing the Council’s 

pension obligation are not reasonable or 

appropriate to the Council’s circumstances. This 

could have a material impact to the net pension 

liability in 2018/19.

We have:

• Critically assessed the competency, objectivity 

and independence of the Greater Manchester 

Pension Fund’s Actuary, Hymans Robertson;

• Liaised with the auditors of the Greater 

Manchester Pension Fund to gain assurance 

that the controls in place at the Pension Fund 

are operating effectively. This included the 

processes and controls in place to ensure data 

provided to the Actuary by the Pension Fund 

for the purposes of the IAS19 valuation is 

complete and accurate;

• Reviewed the appropriateness of the Pension 

Asset and Liability valuation methodologies 

applied by the Pension Fund Actuary, and the 

key assumptions included within the valuation. 

This included comparing them to expected 

ranges, utilising information provided by PWC, 

consulting actuary engaged by the National 

Audit Office;

• Agreed the data in the IAS 19 valuation report 

provided by the Fund Actuary for accounting 

purposes to the pension accounting entries and 

disclosures in the Council’s financial 

statements.

Two legal rulings in year relating 

to guaranteed minimum 

pensions and transitional 

protections have impacted on 

Local Government Pension 

Schemes. The impact of these is 

not included in the Council’s 

pension liability estimate. 

The National Audit Office 

engaged its consulting actuary to 

provide assurance to auditors on 

the appropriateness of the 

actuarial methodology and 

assumptions relating to the legal 

cases which impact on the Local 

Government Pension Scheme. 

This assurance was received, 

and confirmed that the impact of 

the legal cases on its pension 

liability are not material. The 

Council has considered this and 

determined that it does not 

intend to amend the financial 

statements. We identified this as 

a non-material unadjusted audit 

difference.

Identified management judgement Our response
Our findings and 

conclusions

Valuation of investment in Manchester Airport 

Holdings Limited

The Council uses an external valuation expert to 

determine the value of its investment in 

Manchester Airport Holdings Limited at 31 March 

2019. The valuation is determined according to a 

methodology and applying assumptions.  Council 

officers challenge the valuation assumptions and 

reach judgements on the valuation to include in 

the financial statements.

Mazars in-house valuation team reviewed the 

methodology and key assumptions used by 

management’s expert, considering the 

appropriateness of the methodology and the 

reasonableness of the assumptions used.

There were no significant 

matters arising from our work on 

valuation of investment in 

Manchester Airport Holdings 

Limited.

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 20



Our approach to Value for Money
We are required to consider whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

its use of resources.  The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order to form our 

conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 

and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  To assist auditors in reaching a 

conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

 Informed decision making

 Sustainable resource deployment

 Working with partners and other third parties

Our auditor’s report, issued to the Council on 30 July 2019, stated that, in all significant respects, the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31st March 2019

Significant Value for Money risks
The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work to identify whether or not a risk to the Value for Money conclusion exists. Risk, in the 

context of our Value for Money work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place 

at the Council being inadequate.  In our Audit Completion Report, we reported that we had identified three significant Value for Money 

risk(s).  The work we carried out in relation to significant risks is outlined on the following pages.

6

3. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Value for Money conclusion Unqualified

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Risk assessment

NAO Guidance

Sector-wide issues

Risk mitigation work Other procedures

Consider the work of regulators

Planned procedures to mitigate 

the risk of forming an incorrect 

conclusion on arrangements

Consider the Annual 

Governance StatementYour operational and business 

risks

Consistency review and reality 

checkKnowledge from other audit work

Page 21



Significant Value for Money risks

7

3. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Risk Work undertaken and findings Conclusion

Health and Social Care Integration

Rochdale Borough Council continues 

to work with HMR CCG to integrate 

health and social care across the 

Borough. The two organisations are 

embedding governance arrangements 

to ensure the delivery of sustainable 

improvements to the health and 

wellbeing of local residents. There is a 

significant gap in the pooled budget 

set by the two organisations for 

2018/19 and beyond.

This risk links to the Council's 

arrangements for working with third 

parties to deliver its strategic priorities, 

manage risks effectively and maintain 

a sound system of internal control.

The Council continues to work closely with the CCG to deliver 

improvements in health and social care across the Borough. 

Following the establishment of the Better Care Fund in previous 

years, the Council and CCG expanded their joint working 

arrangements with the Health and Social Care pooled budget, 

covering £337m of funding across the Borough.

Governance arrangements for the pooled budgets are 

established through the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB), 

made up of Council and CCG representatives. The ICB 

received regular monitoring reports during the year and worked 

to close the initial gap of £16.7m through savings and 

efficiencies, achieving a balanced final position following 

contributions from Council and CCG reserves.

Development of the Local Care Organisation (LCO) continued 

in 2018/19, and the ICB implemented a gateway review 

process to transfer service delivery to the new organisation. A 

project plan is in place to continue development of the Local 

Care Organisation over the coming year.

We concluded that for 

2018/19 the Council has 

made proper 

arrangements for working 

with third parties to 

deliver its strategic 

priorities, manage risks 

effectively and maintain a 

sound system of internal 

control.

Financial Pressures and Budget 

Gap

The Council continues to face 

significant financial pressures over the 

coming years with reduced funding 

and increasing demand on services. 

The Council has a forecast budget gap 

over the next five years of £26.5m and 

will need to deliver significant savings 

in order to address this.

This risk links to the Council's 

arrangements for sustainable resource 

deployment.

The Council set robust and balanced budgets for 2018/19 and 

2019/20, which, although utilising reserves, does not cause a 

material or significant reduction in those reserves through the 

two years, and those reserves have been held for the purpose 

of supporting the budgetary pressures. Detailed progress 

reports are provided to Cabinet on a quarterly basis allowing 

for effective monitoring of progress against budget. However 

the use of reserves to support revenue budgets in the longer 

term is not sustainable, and the Council will need to ensure 

that its longer term financial sustainability does not deplete its 

reserves to unsustainably low levels.

The Council’s final reported outturn was an overspend of 

£2.7m. Although there are significant demand-led overspends 

in Children’s Services, these have been offset by 

underspends elsewhere in 2018/19 and the Council is working 

to identify ways of mitigating the overspend in future years.

We concluded that for 

2018/19 the Council has 

made proper 

arrangements to deliver 

financial sustainability in 

the medium term.

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 22



Significant Value for Money risks

8

3. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Risk Work undertaken and findings Conclusion

Response to OFSTED’s Inspection 

of Children’s Services 

In March 2018 OFSTED issued a 

report on their latest inspection of the 

Council's children's services. The 

report deemed the service overall as 

requiring improvement and noted a 

number of areas where improvement 

could be made.

This risk links to the Council's 

arrangements for informed decision 

making through its governance 

arrangements and maintaining a 

sound system of internal control.

Since issuing our Audit Strategy Memorandum in December 

2018, OFSTED have undertaken a focused visit of Rochdale’s 

Children’s Services. OFSTED published the results of their visit 

in February 2019, noting a number of improvements since their 

previous visit.

We noted through our review of documents that the Council’s 

response to OFSTED findings was included within the 

Children’s Services Directorate Plan in 2018/19

We concluded that for 

2018/19 the Council has 

made proper 

arrangements to respond 

to the findings from 

external regulators.

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 23



The NAO’s Code of Audit Practice and the 2014 Act place wider reporting responsibilities on us, as the Council‘s external auditor.  We 

set out below, the context of these reporting responsibilities and our findings for each.

Matters on which we report by exception

The 2014 Act provides us with specific powers where matters come to our attention that, in our judgement, require reporting action to be 

taken.  We have the power to:

 Issue a report in the public interest

 Make a referral to the Secretary of State where we believe that a decision has led to, or would lead to, unlawful expenditure, or 

an action has been, or would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; and

 Make written recommendations to the Council which must be responded to publicly. 

We have not exercised any of these statutory reporting powers. 

Reporting to the NAO in respect of Whole of Government Accounts consolidation data

The NAO, as group auditor, requires us to complete the WGA Assurance Statement in respect of its consolidation data, and to carry out 

certain tests on the data. Our work on this is in progress and will be completed by the deadline on 12 September 2019.

Other information published alongside the financial statements 

The Code of Audit Practice requires us to consider whether information published alongside the financial statements is consistent with 

those statements and our knowledge and understanding of the Council.  In our opinion, the other information in the Statement of 

Accounts is consistent with the audited financial statements.

9

4. OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

Exercise of statutory reporting powers No matters to report

Completion of group audit reporting requirements In progress

Other information published alongside the audited financial 

statements
Consistent

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 24



Fees for work as the Council's auditor

We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in the Audit Strategy Memorandum, presented to the Audit and Governance 

Committee in December 2018.

Having completed our work for the 2018/19 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows:

*The final fee includes an additional charge of £600 in respect of work undertaken on the pension liability regarding GMP and McCloud

legal rulings. This is subject to approval by PSAA Ltd.

Fees for other work

We confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit services for the Council in the year.

10

5. OUR FEES

Area of work 2018/19 proposed fee 2018/19 final fee

Delivery of audit work under the NAO Code of Audit Practice £105,007 £105,607*

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 25



Audit Developments

Code of Audit Practice

The Code of Audit Practice sets out what local auditors of relevant local public bodies are required to do to fulfil their statutory 

responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We have responded to the National Audit Office’s consultation on the 

content of the Code (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/)

A new Code will be laid in Parliament in time for it to come in to force no later than 1 April 2020.

Financial Resilience

Fair Funding Review

The Council will need to incorporate the outcome of the Spending Review, due in the latter half of 2019, to its Medium Term Financial 

Plan.  The Spending Review will set out the department allocations for 2020/21 and potentially beyond.  Regardless of the timing and 

period covered by the Spending Review, the Council recognises the key issue is the management of general reserves to a level that 

ensures it remains financially resilient and able to deliver sustainable services.  It must, therefore, ensure it clarifies and quantifies how it 

will bridge the funding gap through planned expenditure reductions and/ or income generation schemes. 

Local Authority Financial Resilience Index

CIPFA is moving forward with its financial resilience index, which it believes will be a barometer on which local authorities will be judged.  

We would expect the Council to have at least considered the index once it is formally released.

Commercialisation

The National Audit Office will be publishing a report on Commercialisation during 2019.  Depending on the Council’s appetite for

Commercialisation, we would expect the Council to consider the outcome of the report and ensure any lessons learnt are incorporated 

into business practice.

Further, the UK Debt Management Office’s Annual Report, published on 23 July 2019, reported that, as at 31 March 2019, the Public 

Works Loan Board’s loan book was £78.3 billion with 1,308 new loans totalling £9.1 billion advanced during the year.  As a result, we 

expect local authorities to clearly demonstrate:

 the value for money in the use of Public Works Loan Board funds to acquire commercial property

 the arrangements for loan repayment through the updated Statutory Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision in 2019/20, 2020/21 

and beyond.

Financial Reporting

UK Local Government Annual Accounts 

The CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Code Board specifies the financial reporting requirements for UK local government.  A consultation 

is underway to inform the direction and strategy for local government annual accounts. We will be submitting our response and suggest 

practitioners also voice their opinion.

Lease accounting

The implementation of IFRS 16 Leases in the Code is delayed until 1 April 2020.  The Council will need a project plan to ensure the data 

analysis and evaluation of accounting entries is completed in good time to ensure any changes in both business practice and financial 

reporting are captured. 

11

6. FORWARD LOOK

1. Executive summary
2. Audit of the 

financial statements
3. Value for Money 

conclusion 
4. Other reporting 

responsibilities
5. Our fees 6. Forward look

Page 26

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


Karen Murray

Partner & Engagement Lead

Phone:0161 238 9248

Email:  karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Daniel Watson

Manager

Phone: 0161 238 9349

Email: daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT

Page 27



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 16th December 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the second 
quarter of 2019/20. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. Furthermore, Internal Audit has completed 
45% of the agreed Audit Plan which achieves the agreed target. 

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £63,578 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the period (£109,386 for the 6 months ended 30 
September 2019) together with three sanctions comprising of three fines for 
fraud. 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for 
governance, to scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the second quarter 
of 2019/20 on all Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal 
Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1 

Risk Based Audit Approach

10. Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the 
internal control environment, risk management and governance 
processes for the Council as a whole, as set out within the Internal Audit 
Charter. A risk based approach is taken within individual audit reviews, 

Page 28

Agenda Item 9



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

embracing operational and management controls and the wider 
business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk 
identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under 
review. These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited
A number of key risks are not managed effectively. 
The control systems in operation are in need of 
significant improvement.

Adequate
The control systems in operation are generally 
sound. However, opportunities exist to improve the 
management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to 
manage risks effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with 
the assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a 
timely basis, any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited 
assurance will be highlighted within section 6 of this report. These will be 
subject to specific discussion and challenge by Members with senior 
officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will perform a 
formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner if the due date for 
completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the Audit and 
Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm 
completion once the due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation 
will be reported to the Committee for further consideration. If some of the 
recommendations have not yet been actioned, Internal Audit will request 
reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by which the 
action should be completed. 

The current status of the implementation of audit recommendations as 
confirmed by formal follow up audits is highlighted within Appendix B and 
any key issues will be highlighted to the Members. Whilst in some cases 
implementation has not been achieved by the originally agreed dates, 
Internal Audit has received reasonable explanations to support the delays 
incurred and will continue to monitor progress through to the revised dates 
proposed by management. In this regard it is noted that 2 actions agreed in 
relation to the audit on Highways Contract Management in 2017 have still 
not yet been fully implemented but continue to be progressed by 
management.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations raised are received within one month of 

Page 29



5

5.1

6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

the issue date. Internal Audit actively follows up with management via an 
escalation process to ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a 
timely manner. At present, there are no draft reports where responses are 
still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter Two

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed 
during quarter two which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance 
opinion. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with 
a specific focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority.

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up 
Audits

No audit reviews with a limited assurance opinion have been completed 
during the period.

The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. 

Unplanned work

Integrity Due Diligence
  (Director  – Neighbourhoods)

At the request of management Internal Audit was requested to undertake 
due diligence on an organisation involved in providing local support for the 
Dippy on Tour project to evaluate their integrity. No issues were identified 
in relation to the organisation concerned.

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from July to 
September 2019 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 177 fraud referrals were received in the second quarter of this 
financial year, compared to 178 from the same period in 2018/19. The main 
sources of these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the 
Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC 
employees. A significant number of these do not progress to formal 
investigation by the team as they are either passed to the DWP or closed 
due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough 
information to progress the matter. 

From July to September 2019 the team achieved £63,578 in additional 
savings and overpayments. This figure derives from successful 
investigations into transactions associated with a number of Service areas 
including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult 
Care, as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties and 

Page 30



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

administrative penalties. 

81% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in the second quarter. 

Three sanctions were achieved in quarter two, comprising of three fines for 
fraud. 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.  

The Team have started to check data received in the 2018/2019 NFI Single 
Person Discount, Council Tax matches. The first round of proactive visits 
were conducted in July 2019. To date over 24 Single Persons Discounts 
have been cancelled, resulting in over £14,000 being generated in Council 
Tax bills.                          .       
                                     
The NFI Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support work from 2018/2019 
has commenced. The high risk matches are currently being checked and 
sifted, as well as samples of the key reports.  There are 9 NFI Housing 
Benefit and Council Tax Support fraud cases currently under investigation    
To date, the Counter Fraud Team has found over £20,000 in overpayments 
from these NFI matches and these are now being recovered.  

New HMRC data has been provided by NFI. The data has matched against 
HMRC records, alongside Housing Benefit, Council Tax Support and 
Single Person Discounts. The Counter Fraud Team are currently checking 
and sifting this data. 

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 
over 95 Data Protection Requests from July to September 2019, not 
including the work that is completed in the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, 
skills and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to 
prevent and detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-
agency teams attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; 
Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community 
Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; 
Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 85 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 

Page 31



8.13

9

9.1

9.2

10

10.1

absconders.   3 fraud referrals were received from the PET from July to 
September 2019 and 8 referrals are currently under investigation.        
  
The Counter Fraud Team continues to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.  
  
Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 30 September 2019 
against Internal Audit targets for the second quarter, including the actuals 
for 2018/19. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Year 

2018/19

Target 
Q2

2019/20

Actual 
Q2

2019/20
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£229 £260 £254

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor 
(days)

208 190 192

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed (96% for full year)

22% 44% 45%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports 
issued within 14 days of 
completion of the audit

100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good)

100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period.  

Amendments to the Audit Plan

Following a full review of the Audit Plan, as agreed by the Audit and 
Governance Committee on 8 April 2019, in conjunction with senior 
management within individual directorates, the following audits have now 
been deferred to 2020/21 or deleted for the reasons stated. As such the 
Head of Internal Audit considers that this will have no detrimental impact on 
the ability to deliver an opinion on the overall control environment for 
2019/20.

Page 32



 Deprivation of Liberty (Adult Services) – audit deferred to 2020/21 as 
current model is due to be replaced by the Liberty Protection 
Safeguards process by October 2020, so plan to confirm 
appropriateness of implementation next year;

 Link4Life Client Management (Public Health and Wellbeing) – audit 
deferred to 2020/21 as proposed new contract and supporting 
processes are not now due to be implemented until April 2020; and

 Various grant certifications that had been requested by central 
government in 2018/19, and which were expected again in 2019/20 
have not been required and have therefore been deleted from the 
Plan.

10.2     The audit resource freed up as a result of the above has subsequently been 
absorbed within additional audit work focused on procurement, specifically 
commissioning within Children’s services.

11  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

11.1 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of organisations 
in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In 2019/20 to 30 September 2019 this has generated 
income of £3,590 and has included: 

 Audit of School Fund Accounts for seven schools under Local Authority 
control; 

 Financial health check for one school under Local Authority control; and
 Grant certification for an Academy.

11.2      Within the limitations of existing resources, Internal Audit continues to pursue 
opportunities to generate external income.

Costs and Budget Summary

12. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

13.

Consultation

14. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Page 33



Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 34



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter two

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Data Integrity IT systems within Adult Care hold large amounts of sensitive data and it is 
important that this data is of the highest quality in terms of completeness, 
accuracy and timeliness of input to ensure services provided are efficient, 
effective and fit for purpose. This need is heightened further as data is 
shared increasingly with other health providers as services become more 
integrated. This audit sought to evaluate processes supporting data 
integrity in relation to compliance with the Care Act, basic demographic 
information and support planning.

Whilst processes and controls are generally sound, actions were agreed to 
address issues relating to:

 The existence of duplicate records which may inhibit the 
effectiveness of the service provided;

 The need for supporting documents on the systems to inform 
decision making; and

 The need for additional training to ensure all aspects of General 
Data Protection Regulations are complied with.

Adequate M – 3 

P
age 35



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Flare IT system Flare is a key IT system used by the Council as part of the Home 
Improvement Agency which provides a range of practical help and support 
to enable elderly, vulnerable and disabled people to live independently 
within their homes. Assessments may lead to the provision of assistive 
technology, minor or major adaptations to homes. This audit focused on 
the IT system itself to provide assurance over the confidentiality, integrity 
and availability of the system to support operational procedures.

The audit provided assurance that the IT system is managed effectively. 
However it was noted that the system will need to be replaced within a 3 
year period as support from the software supplier is being withdrawn. 
Consequently the Service will liaise with IT to identify and implement a 
suitable replacement in due course.

Substantial None

P
age 36



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Safeguarding Safeguarding refers to the protection of adults from abuse or neglect. The 
Care Act 2014 sets out the safeguarding responsibilities of local authorities 
and places a duty on them to undertake safeguarding enquiries where 
vulnerable adults with care and support needs are experiencing (or where 
there is a suspicion of) abuse/ neglect and they are unable to protect 
themselves. This audit focused on evaluating the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the key controls and procedures in the Council’s 
safeguarding process.

The audit concluded that the control systems are generally sound but there 
were opportunities to enhance the management of risks. The two high 
priority actions agreed with management were to ensure that:

 Supporting systems such as ALLIS are fully populated to explain 
the reasons behind decisions that have been made to either 
progress or close a case; and

 All relevant staff are fully trained on both procedures to follow and 
the systems that support these processes to ensure that full audit 
trails are maintained in the event of any subsequent challenge.

Other actions agreed included:
 Enhancing quality assurance processes; and
 Ensuring processes supporting the approval of decisions are more 

robust.

Adequate H – 2,
M – 4,
L – 2 

P
age 37



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Rochdale 
Additional Needs 
Service (RANS)

RANS offers specialist and highly individual support for children with more 
complex and/ or low incidence specialist educational needs, with a specific 
focus on promoting inclusion in whatever setting is appropriate for the 
children’s needs. The audit focused on evaluating operational practices in 
the two Visual and Hearing Impairment Teams and included visits to two 
schools.

The audit concluded that there are well established operational procedures 
in place which lead to a generally effective service being provided. The 
medium priority recommendations agreed with management will ensure 
that:

 Quality assurance processes will be more formalised;
 A mechanism will be established to confirm whether young people 

have received their allocated amount of team input;
 Greater consistency in the practices employed by both teams is 

achieved; and
 Formal service level agreements are in place for services provided 

by RANS.

Adequate M – 4,
L – 5 

Children’s Youth Offending 
Team (YOT)

The YOT works with young people who have come to the attention of the 
police because of their offending behaviour or who are at risk of 
committing a crime. The aim of the team is to reduce the level of offending 
by young people. The audit focused on providing assurance that 
operational practices are compliant with policy and statute.

The audit provided substantial assurance that there is a sound system of 
control in place. However it was identified that some reviews and visits 
were not being undertaken in a timely manner or in line with national 
guidelines, and management have agreed to review processes to ensure 
they remain fit for purpose and aligned with appropriate standards.

Substantial M – 1 

P
age 38



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Integrated Health 
and Social Care

Pooled Budget Summary of audit performed by Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA)
Pooled budgets are partnership arrangements, enabled by the NHS Act 
2006, between NHS organisations and local authorities, where partners 
contribute an agreed level of resource into a single pot that is used to 
commission or deliver health and social care services. The overall 
objective of this review was to provide assurance around the systems, 
processes and governance arrangements, including reporting and risk 
management, associated with the commissioned services funded by the 
pooled budget associated with both the Council and the CCG.

The assurance level was based on the finding that there is a good system 
of internal control designed to meet the system objectives, and controls 
were generally being applied consistently. The key recommendations 
agreed with management were to ensure that:

 The Finance, Performance and Risk Group report formally to the 
Integrated Commissioning Board to enhance overall governance;

 Budget proposals should only be formally approved where 
appropriate supporting plans and proposals are provided to 
demonstrate achievability;

 There is greater transparency over additional income generated 
from partners to ensure that they are allocated to the appropriate 
areas of service; and

 Greater consistency is exercised over the production of minutes 
from Integrated Commissioning Board meetings to ensure that they 
truly represent and support all key governance decisions.

The recommendations are due to be implemented by 31 March 2020 after 
which the MIAA will undertake a follow up audit to confirm actions have 
been completed.

Substantial M – 4,
L – 1 

P
age 39



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Economy Town Centre 
Programme 

Management

Given the scale of work being undertaken in Rochdale town centre, there 
is a need to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to monitor and 
control the programme of projects to ensure that they are completed within 
budget, on time and achieve the expected outcomes and benefits. 
Rochdale Development Agency (RDA), as a local authority controlled 
company, aims to provide an overall programme management framework 
to ensure delivery of the Town Centre Programme. This audit focused on 
providing assurance on the effectiveness of the programme management 
processes focusing on project monitoring and reporting arrangements, 
management of risks and finances, visibility of key information to 
stakeholders and benefits realisation.

The audit indicated that the processes supporting programme 
management are adequate but there were two high priority actions to:

 Strengthen the scrutiny and challenge role of the Programme 
Management Board; and

 Develop a benefits realisation plan to provide an effective 
framework for the scrutiny and review of outputs and benefits.

Furthermore, and aligned with the above, management agreed to review 
and enhance the Project Management System, including the Project 
Initiation Document, to facilitate further enhancements to relevant 
processes.

Adequate H – 2,
M – 6,
L – 1 

P
age 40



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources STAR 
Procurement 

Contracts 
Register

Further to a previous audit of the Contracts Register in 2018/19, this audit 
focused on providing additional assurance on the processes supporting 
the renewals of contracts, based on a sample of contracts, focusing on 
those contracts coming up to their expiry dates.

The audit concluded that processes and controls were adequate but it was 
identified that some of the information on the Contracts Register was not 
up to date. Given that this is the responsibility of the Council, each 
Directorate has subsequently nominated a Senior Responsible Officer, in 
accordance with Contract Procedure Rules, to assume responsibility to 
ensure information is both timely and up to date.

Adequate M – 1 

Resources STAR 
Performance 
Management 
Arrangements

Summary of audit performed by Stockport Council Internal Audit in relation 
to Stockport, Trafford and Rochdale.
STAR is a shared procurement service for Stockport, Trafford, Rochdale 
and Tameside which ultimately is accountable to the STAR Joint 
Committee. This audit focused on evaluating STAR’s performance 
management arrangements, including the appropriateness of the key 
performance indicators (KPIs), the robustness of the process for capturing 
the data for these indicators against the performance management 
framework and the reporting arrangements.

The audit concluded that there are appropriate arrangements in place for 
the production of performance management information and that the KPIs 
are relevant. Actions were agreed to enhance certain aspects of the 
processes including:

 The definition and apportionment of savings achieved;
 The formal agreement of calculated savings;
 The development of an IT solution to improve the efficiency of 

related processes; and
 The implementation of independent quality checks on the data.

Adequate M – 4,
L – 1 

P
age 41



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Housing Benefit 
Subsidy Claim

Local authorities reclaim the housing benefit that they have paid out from 
the DWP by means of submitting a claim. The Housing Benefit Subsidy 
Claim is audited and certified by the Authority’s external auditors, Mazars 
to confirm the accuracy of the claim. Should errors be found in the claim, 
there is the risk that subsequent claims may be reduced. The audit sought 
to provide assurance that a sample of claims have been accurately 
assessed and that benefit has been calculated and classified correctly.

The audit did identify a small number of errors all of which were due to 
human error and have now been corrected. Training courses continue to 
be developed and provided to staff to ensure any errors identified, either 
by Internal Audit or internal checks, are addressed and the risk of errors 
being incurred in the future is mitigated as far as possible.

Adequate M – 1 

P
age 42



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

3 Primary 
Schools

This comprised a review of the schools’ exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Marland Hill Community Primary
St Edwards CE Primary
St Marys RC Primary

Whilst no high priority recommendations were made, a number of actions 
were agreed to improve processes and controls including ensuring that:

 The school development plan includes financial costs associated 
with the delivery of outcomes;

 All income is recorded promptly and supported by a clear audit 
trail;

 VAT on petty cash transactions is appropriately accounted for; and
 A debt collection policy is developed to support the recovery of 

outstanding amounts.

In addition to the above a financial health check was carried out at 
Brownhill Special School to provide assurance to Governors on the 
robustness of the key financial systems and controls as well as providing 
advice and guidance on procedures and best practice. An action plan 
summarising our advice was issued to the school.

Substantial – 
2

Adequate – 1

M – 10,
L – 9 

P
age 43



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 4 DECEMBER 2019

Report Assurance Service 
High and 
Medium 
priority 
actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Highways Contract 
Management A Neighbourhoods 15 31/07/2017 26/03/2019 13 2

KPIs have been developed 
and were presented to the 

Management Board in 
October 2019. Also the 

Management Board are still 
pursuing the contractor to 
confirm if all original bid 
commitments have be 

fulfilled. 

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/03/2018 25/03/2019 10 1

The one remaining action 
will be implemented when 
the new disaster recovery 
and backup solution is in 

place in autumn 2019. 

Review of Compliance 
with Contract Procedure 
Rules

A Resources 3 31/05/2019    
To be followed up in 2019/20 

by Stockport MBC Internal 
Audit

Provider Portal 
Payments A Adult Care 6 30/06/2019 18/07/2019 3 3

Management are performing 
reviews on individual 

providers with outcomes 
being monitored by Internal 

Audit and any overpayments 
are being recovered.

 Highways Winter 
Service S Neighbourhoods 11 31/08/2019 24/06/2019 5 6

Remaining actions will be 
embedded once new winter 
season activity is initiated. 

Further follow up to be done 
in quarter 3 of 2019/20

P
age 44



Report Assurance Service High and 
Medium 
priority actions 

Final Date 
for 
Completion 

Follow up 
date 

Actions 
Complete

Actions 
Still in 
Progress 

Notes on Follow Up Audit

Commercial Investment 
Fund A Economy 7 31/10/2019 29/04/2019 5 2

The development of a 
Portfolio Management 

Strategy is currently under 
consideration in conjunction 
with RDA with a completion 

date yet to be confirmed.
ContrOCC A Adult 2 30/11/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20
Rochdale Additional 
Needs Service A Childrens 4 31/12/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

Town Centre 
Programme 
Management

A Economy 8 31/12/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

Housing Benefit Subsidy 
Claim A Resources 1 31/12/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

Data Security and 
Protection Toolkit A Neighbourhoods 2 31/01/2020    To be followed up in 2019/20

External Placements A Childrens 7 31/01/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20
Corporate GDPR/ Data 
Protection 
Arrangements

A Neighbourhoods 7 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2019/20

Honorarium And 
Substitution Payments A Resources 7 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Pooled Budgets A Integrated 
Health 4 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21 

by the MIAA
Youth Offending Team S Childrens 1 30/04/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

Pen Pictures A Adult Care 6 30/04/2020 13/11/2019 3 3

3 remaining actions will be 
completed once a full review 
of the Commissioning Pen 
Picture process has been 

completed.
I.T. Security A Neighbourhoods 6 30/06/2020    To be followed up in 2020/21

P
age 45



P
age 46



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 16 December 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 2 of the 2019/20 year.

Updates on positive risk management developments in the Environmental 
Management service and the latest plans to manage priority risks under 
Integrated Health transformation projects are included. 

The Insurance Team achieved a claims cost mitigation figure of £531,964.13 
for the quarter. A significant cost saving was achieved in the procurement of a 
new insurance broker contract, and a fundamental dishonesty court judgement 
in our favour demonstrated the success of the team’s investigations of and 
subsequent challenge to claims made.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of assurance 
provided through the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2019/20 year for all 
Council Services.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Corporate Risk Register

The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. The Corporate risk register can be viewed under 
Appendix 1.

Page 47

Agenda Item 10



5.

5.1

5.2

An exercise to review all risks under the register with the appropriate Directors 
is currently underway, under the direction of the Risk Manager.

Service Risk Management

Positive Risk Management Developments in the Environmental Management 
Service

A combination of process and structure changes within the Environmental 
Management Service are intended to deliver future improvements to risk 
management controls.

A new Compliance & Operations Support Team was created as part of an 
October 2019 restructure. The team will manage compliance with regulations, 
oversee health and safety responsibilities and manage performance and risk. It 
will also act as lead team in the Service for new ICT packages and manage all 
customer-relationship management requests in an efficient manner.

Already a review of the process to respond to insurance claims caused by 
asset defects has resulted in a positive risk management change. The 
Insurance Team will be working closely with EM and Building Support Services 
to ensure that all information relating to claims is shared and have agreed to 
also notify the Compliance team immediately when a claim is submitted to 
enable immediate repairs, prompt investigations and reduce the chance of 
repeat incidents. New claims will in turn be logged onto Health & Safety 
software (SHE Assure). The software allows monitoring and reporting on all 
incidents, looking for trends to proactively minimise future events.

Property Services have been charged with carrying out condition surveys for 
all of Environmental Management’s parks and open space assets. The survey 
data collated will be fed into the Atrium software system to improve asset 
management coordination.

The Compliance team are also actively working to procure new Alloy and 
Techforge software packages to assist in achieving their objectives. The 
functionality of a number of existing software systems will be provided by both, 
making operational improvements and reducing annual license and 
maintenance costs.

Integrated Care Risk Management

The project management team (PMO) of the Heywood Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) coordinated updates to the 
risk registers of the Transformation projects during Q2.

A programme of reviews of the Transformation projects was undertaken in 
August and subsequently plans agreed to reduce spend significantly, maximise 
benefits and increase contribution to the locality gap.

The following Red risks were identified within a ‘Corporate Risk Register and 
Assurance Framework paper presented to the CCG Audit committee on 4th 

Page 48



5.3

November 2019 -.

 CCG objectives: Failure to close the collective financial gap by 2020/21 - 
Risk that the economy-wide deficit will not be closed. There are discussions 
taking place between CCG and the Council as to how this will be closed. 
The 2 main providers Pennine Acute and Pennine Care have significant 
financial gaps and are working on plans to achieve their control totals for 
2019/20.

- Savings programme and decommissioning strategies are being 
implemented with the first round of schemes delivering from April 2019.

 Locality Plan iro. Hospitals, Planned: Potential failure to deliver deflections - 
Risk that cost deflections will not be delivered due to the lack of clarity 
around the Integrated Elected Care Pathway (IECP2) and Long Term 
Conditions (LTC) Acute interventions.

- Change control process to be completed to bring IECP2 and LTC Acute 
teams into one intervention to review priority pathways.

- Full cost deflection review resulting in removal of estimated benefits from 
transformation.

 Locality Plan iro. Hospitals, Urgent Care and Mental Health - Potential 
failure to deliver deflections - Risk that the level of deflections considered 
achievable not sufficient to achieve the deflections set out in the March 
2018 plan.

- Report on the outcomes of Confirm and Challenge sessions (held for all 
schemes of the Locality Plan) included with ICB November presentation of 
Transformation Programme status.

- Deflection evaluation and logic meetings taking place on a weekly basis.

During 2019/20 the Health & Social Care (H&SC) pooled fund continues to 
experience significant pressure resulting in both the Council and CCG making 
additional in-year contributions. A proportion of the contribution to be funded by 
the Council will only be made if the pooled fund is unable to identify alternative 
sources of funding or savings in 2019/20 to bridge the remaining pressure.

Risk Management Results

There are currently 2 Red risks within the risk registers of RBC Services’ to 
report -

Ref Service Risk Title

CSDR006
Children’s 
Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the 
financial position of the Service and its ability 
to provide services

CSCR002 Children’s Social 
Care

Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service 
continues to increase, leading to failure to 
manage within budget

Page 49



6

6.1

Please note that variations in RAG risk scores should not be viewed purely as 
a reflection of the effectiveness of risk control activity - risk scoring is also 
influenced by the severity of risks associated with the different Services and 
their capacity to mitigate. Further details regarding the factors considered 
when scoring the risks and the mitigation actions being implemented are 
provided under Appendix 2.

Insurance Team

Performance
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from July 2019 to 
September 2019 is set out below.

The team received a total of 131 new claims notifications during quarter 2. This 
total can be divided between the various insurance classes – Highways (52), 
Motor (48), Other Public Liability (21), Employer’s Liability (3), Others (7). This 
figure is an increase in comparison to the 116 notifications received during Q2 
2018/19.

A total of 116 claims were closed by the team during quarter 2. This figure can 
be divided between the insurance classes - Highways (70), Motor (27), Other 
Public Liability (15), Employer’s Liability (4). Closed claims will largely not be 
the same incidents as the newly notified claims referred to above. The claims 
handling process can run over a period of months or years, and therefore the 
team are working on a combination of new and existing cases.

The claims cost mitigation figures displayed in the table below are calculated 
by subtracting the final settled amounts for closed claims against the highest 
reserve amounts for the same losses during the handling of the claims. These 
statistics are a useful measure of the level of challenge put forward by the 
Insurance Team during their investigations, liaison with Council Services, and 
joint work with solicitors to defend against legal proceedings.

Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2019/20 Q2

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation

July 43 £137,168.63

Aug 44 £243,650.54

Sept 57 £151,144.96

Total 144 £531,964.13

The table shows that the Insurance Team achieved a total cost mitigation of 
£531,964.13 on settled claims costs during Q2. An example of a successful 
claims cost mitigation was a saving of just over £43,000 made on a Highways 
trip incident. The claimant discontinued the claim after our investigations 
revealed we had a strong Section 58 defence, there was a lengthy delay in 
seeking medical assistance and the individual had a history of making personal 

Page 50



6.2

6.3

7

injury claims. 

Fundamental Dishonesty Judgement: James Inglis v Rochdale BC 

The Insurance Team successfully defended a personal injury claim allegedly 
caused by a fall involving a pothole. Although the Council initially admitted 
liability, we applied to resile the admission because investigations revealed a 
number of significant medical and factual inconsistencies. Cross-examination 
by the Council’s barrister highlighted the claimant’s route was illogical, his 
description of the accident unclear and there was no reference to a pothole in 
the medical records. The loss of earnings section of the claim was also shown 
to be fraudulent because the claimant had stopped working two and a half 
months prior to the accident.

The claim was dismissed and the Judge, at a later hearing, gave a finding of 
Fundamental Dishonesty, ordering the claimant to pay the Council’s costs in 
full. This result sends a clear message that Rochdale BC will pursue claimants 
who bring dishonest claims.

Broker Tender 2019

The procurement tender exercise for insurance broker services was completed 
in November – this was a collaborative contract with insurance colleagues at 
Manchester, Oldham, Bolton and GMCA. The contract was awarded to AJ 
Gallagher, commencing on 1st November 2019.

It has been calculated that alongside assurances on service standards the 
Council will benefit from combined broker fee and associated service charge 
savings of £51,000 over the possible 4 year duration of the contract.

Priorities for the Next Quarter

 Continue with review of Corporate (Leadership) risk register.
 Reissue of Rochdale Risk Management Policy
 Establish format of Insurance Cost by Service reports to Leadership Team.

Costs and Budget Summary

8. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

9.

Page 51



Consultation

10. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 52



Appendix 1 3 December 2019

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk Summary

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 

P
age 53



the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed annually, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
annually   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2018/19 and 2019/20 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Julie Murphy Julie Murphy Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

30 Apr 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 20

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members 
working together)   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

P
age 54



 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Julie Murphy Julie Murphy Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Apr 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)

P
age 55



Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Neil Thornton Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 1 Mar 20

CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

P
age 56



John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks    

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early 
identification and intervention on community tensions and develop positive community 
cohesion and diversionary activities to mitigate risks of escalation in tension. The CMG to 
inform and take direction from RBC and Partners command structure.

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

P
age 57



CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sally McIvor Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

1 Mar 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 1 Mar 20

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 20

P
age 58



P
age 59



Q2 2019/20 High-Scoring Service Risks
Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 

Score

CSDR006 Children’s Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the financial position of the 
Service and its ability to provide services Gail Hopper 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score? Locally, predicted pressures are being experienced as a result of an increase in demand for children’s social care services generally, 
numbers of children subject to child protection plans, increases in care proceedings, the number of cared for children, continuing increase in demand for children with special 
educational needs and / or disabilities and unaccompanied asylum seeking children. This reflects the picture both regionally and nationally.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A Business Case for increased resources in line with areas of increased demand in children’s social care has 
been agreed; this has been worked upon with Finance colleagues and has been considered at informal Cabinet, the ICB and is to be presented to Cabinet for a formal decision. A five year 
sustainability strategy has also been developed, with key components to increase placement sufficiency through innovation and market management.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The Senior Leadership Team regularly considers budget pressures collectively and in their separate management 
meetings. There are monthly meetings with the Chief Executive, the S151 Officer and Director of Resources, as well as regular meetings with the Leader and Portfolio Holder. This 
residual risk will be reviewed again at the end of Q2. Reduction in the risk score is dependent on the outcome of the Government Spending Review.

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSCR002 Children’s Services Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service continues to increases, 
leading to failure to manage within budget

Jill McGregor / 
Sandra Bowness 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  The growing child population in borough and growing demand is causing increased budget pressures in children’s social care and in the 
additional needs service (SEND). This reflects similar demands across the country. 91% of children’s services budgets overspent nationally in 2018/19. (Rochdale did not overspend last 
year).

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A five year sustainability strategy has been developed by reviewing and mapping levels of need and 
implications; reviewing the research and evidence base of what works; reviewing all children in external placements and working up a detailed investment strategy. This involves a 
Greater Manchester approach to implementing innovation programmes that have been successful elsewhere in the country. Progress is being made in Rochdale to develop these 
approaches, but will take time to deliver impact. One of the areas we cannot control is the inward migration, see below. The Family Service Model (FSM) and approach has been 
developed to manage demand through co-ordinated multi-agency early help.  The FSM has been developed as part of the transformation programme and predicted deflections and 
mainstreaming have not been realised to date. Additional resource has been allocated in line with demand in Children’s Social Care.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The sustainability strategy will over time support greater likelihood of managing demand within the designated budget. 
What the service is unable to predict is those demands emerging from children new to the authority. In the period between September and December almost 500 children new to the 
country and to the borough required school places – what is not known about these children is what level of social care needs they may present moving forward. These increases have 
been experienced in the borough over the last 3 years, but the 18/19 figures are much higher than in previous years (50% increase).

P
age 60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 2019-20 External Audit Progress Report
	8 2018-19 Annual Audit Letter
	9 Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2019/20
	10 Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2019/20
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2019/20


